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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Jarir Marketing
Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Companyy)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Qur opinion

In our apinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Jarir Marketing Company (the "Company™) and its subsidiaries (together the *Group™) as
at December 31, 2018, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public
Accountants (SOCPA).

What we have audited
The Group’s consotidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018;

the consolidated statement of income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

th‘i notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Busis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, OQur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the andit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the code of professional conduct and ethics, endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Our audtt approach
Overview

Key Audit Matters « Implementation of IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

As part of designing our andit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that invelved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our andit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Jarir Marketing
Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) - continued

Key audit matter

Key andit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinien thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matler Flew our audil addressed the Key andit

tmaller

Implementation of IFRS 15 “Revenue from

contracts with customers” We performed the following procedures in relation to
the implementation of IFRS 15:

The Group adopted International Financial

Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from contracts with e Reviewed management’s detailed analysis of its

customers™ with effect from 1 January 2018 and this revenue streams and how the new accounting
new standard supersedes the requirements of IAS 18 standard impacted the Group;
“Revenue”.

. » Gained an understanding of management’s
Management performed a detailed analysis of each approach to the implementation of any changes
type of revenue contract to identify differences to the accounting policy;

between the requirements of the two standards,
identify the changes required to be made to existing  » Obtained an understanding of the nature of

accounting policies and determine the transition revenue contracts used by the Group for each
adjustments and consequential changes to processes significant revenue streams and assessed
a}‘:d controls required particularly in 0011“9!];‘11_0“ with whether or not management’s application of the
the separation of different performance obligations requirements of IFRS 15 was in accordance with
that there may be within a given contract. the accounting standard;
Management also assessed the additional disclosures |, Tested  relevant

: - processes  and  controls
requuio;él t':d?ie ma?:i l:yt the “te“' standard in the established by management to ensure
consolidated financial statements. appropriate recognition of revenue;
We considered this a key audit matter as revenueisa We also reviewed the ;

. ? ; adequacy of the Group's

e, e S perlormance mettie discasures included in Note 2.13 and Note 19
. L and Note 26 to the accompanying consolidat:
Jjudgment by management and the use of significant financial statements in relation to the

assumptions, implementation of the new accounting standard.

Refer to Note 2.13 for accounting policy and Note 19
and Note 26 for the related cdisciosure in the
aceompanying consolidated financial statemnents

Cther information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
inclided in the Annual Report of the Group (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's repart thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.



Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Jarir Marketing
Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) - continued

Responsibih'ties of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, and the applicable requirements of the Regulations for
Companies and the Company's By-laws, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going coneern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thase charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they conld reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

¢ Evaluate the apprapriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of aceounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a poing concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to commaunicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Jarir Marketing
Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) - continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the avdit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matiers in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shonld not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such commumnication.
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of financial position
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

As at December 31,

Assets Note 2018 2017
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 145,545 200,331
Trade receivables 4 180,482 147,037
Inventories 5 1,057,673 947 2845
Prepayments and other assets & 374,212 202,970
Total current assets 1,757,912 1,498,283

Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 27,951 27,951

Investment properties, net 7 313,754 275,208
Property and equipment, net 8 1,115,297 1,075,688
Total non-current assets 1,457,002 1,378.847
Total assets 3,214,914 2,877,130
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Bank borrowings and term loans 9 275,000 84,153
Liabilities against finance leases 10 665 633
Accounts payable 11 904,748 805,536
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 115,931 152,420
Employees’ incentive program 24,788 15,542
Deferred revenues 13 14,558 16,043
Zakat payable 14 28,316 28,325
Total current liabilities 1,364,006 1,102,652
Non-current liabilities

Liabilities against finance leases 10 9,610 10,716
End of service benefits 15 133,612 125,707
Employees’ incentive program 3,771 1.123
Deferred revenues 13 4,498 4,889
Total non-current liabilities 151,491 148,435
Total liabilities 1,515,497 1,251,087
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 1,17 1,200,000 900.000
Statutory reserve 18 95,999 296,500
Foreign exchange reserve (73,139) (71.888)
Retained earnings 476,557 501,431

Total shareholders’ equity 1,699,417 1,626,043
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,214,914 2,877,130

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of income
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Year ended December 31,

Note 2018 2017
Revenue 19 7,361,723 6,941,935
Cost of sales 20 (6,247,901) (5,904,694)
Gross profit 1,113,822 1,037,241
Operating expenses
General and administrative 21 (106,952) (97,692)
Selling and marketing 22 (93,349) (104,778)
Other income, net 23 64,698 41,267
Income from cperations 978,219 876,038
Finance costs (3.977) (301)
Income before zakat and income tax 974,242 875,137
Zakat 14 (14,250) (7,250)
Income tax - (228)
Net income for the year 959,992 B67 659
All attributable to the shareholders of the Company
Earnings per share (Saudi Riyals):
Basic and diluted eamnings per share 24 8.00 7.23

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these consoclidated financial statements.
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Year ended December 31,

Note 2018 2017

Net income for the year 959,992 BB7,659
Other comprehensive (loss) income that may be reclassified

subsequently to the consolidated statement of income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {1,251) 1,085
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

subsequently to the consolidated statement of income
Remeasurement of end of service benefits 15 4,133 4,217
Other comprehensive income for the year 2,882 5,302
Total comprehensive income for the year 962,874 872,861
All attributable to the shareholders of the Company. \

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements”

i



JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note
January 1, 2018
Net income for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)
income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)
income for the year

Transfer to share capital
Transfer to statutory reserve

Transactions with owners in

their capacity as owners:
Dividends 25

December 31, 2018
January 1, 2017

Adjustment to opening retained
earnings on adoption of IFRS 9 2.1 (iv) (a)

Adjusted total equity at
January 1, 2017

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Dividends 25

December 31, 2017

Foreign
Share  Statutory  exchange Retained

capital reserve reserve  earnings Total
900,000 296,500 (71,888) 501,431 1,626,043
& . - 959,892 959,992

- - (1,251) 4,133 2,882

. - (1,251) 964,125 962,874
300,000 (298,500) & (3,500) -
95,999 - (95.999) -

s 5 - (889,500)  (889,500)
1,200,000 95,999 (73,139) 476,557 1,699,417
900,000 296,500 (72,973) 380,185 1,503,692
. : - (3.610) {3,610)
900,000 296,500 (72,973) 376,555 1,500,082
- - - 867,659 867,659

- - 1,085 4,217 5,302

- - 1,085 871,876 872,961

z - - (747,000) (747,000)
900,000 296,500 (71,888) 501,431 1,626,043

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. -
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated statement of cash flows
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation 7,8
Net impairment losses on trade receivables 4
Provision for slow moving inventory 5
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Impairment of investment property 4
Provision for employees' incentives program
Zakat and income tax 14
Provision for end of service benefits 15

Changes in working capital

Trade receivables

Inventories

Prepayments and other current assets
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred revenues

Employees’ incentive program paid

Zakat and income tax paid

End of service benefits paid 15
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to investment properties
Additions to property and eqguipment 8
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash utilized in investing activities

-

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of finance lease liabilities

Receipt of bank borrowing and term loans

Dividends paid 25
Net cash utilized in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
959,002 867,659
56,620 49,193
1,394 1,398
15,410 18,802
(880) (399)
. 5,063
5,894 -
14,250 7,478
17,163 16,300
(34,839) (51,091)
(125,138) (83,949)
(212,694) 37,226
56,511 54,338
(36,242) 30,653
(1,876) (2,388)
- (8,229)
(14,493) (8.978)
(5,125) (4,653)
695,947 928,423
(47,617) (25,266)
(125,115) (117,434)
38,239 4,371
(134,493) (138,329)
(1,074) (894)
275,000 .
(889,500) (747,000)
(615,574) (747,894)
(54,120) 42,200
(666) 337
200,331 157,794
145,545 200,331




JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

{ii) Historic cost convention

These consolidated financial statements havae been prepared undar the historical cosi convention, as modified for
financial assets al fair value through profit or loss and by using the actuarial basis for end of service benefits, on
the accrual basis of accounting.

{iii) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to use judgment in applying its
accounting pelicies and eslimates and assumptions about the future. Estimates and other judgments are
continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations
about future avents that are believed to ba reasonable under the circumstances. Although these estimales and
judgments are based on management's best knowledge of current events and aclions, actual results ultimately
may differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing an adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Component approach usad in the adjustments te property and equipmant and investmant praperties

Adjustments mada to properly and squipmeni involvad the application of component approach required by IAS 16.
In applying the component approach, where significant parts of an item of property and equipment as well as
investment properties are depreciated separately, the cost allocated to the significant parts as well as respective
estimated useful lives are advised by the main coniractor for the properties constructed by ihe Group.
Reasonableness of such cast allocation and useful fives has been assessed by management.

{b) Impairment test for non-financial assets

Judgment is required in assessing whether cerlain factors would be considered an indicator of impairment,
Management considers both internal and external information to determine whether there is an indicator of
impairment present and, accordingly, whether impairment testing is required. When impairment testing is requirad,
discounted cash flow models are used to detemmine the recoverable amount of respective assets. When market
transactions for comparable assels are available, these are considered in determining the recoverable amount of
assels. Significant assumptions used in prepanng discounted cash flow models include growth rates, expected
future cash flows, operating costs, capital expenditures and discount rales. These inputs are based on
management's best estimales of what an independent market participant would consider appropriate. Changes in
these inputs may alter the results of impairment testing, the amount of the impairment charges recorded in the
consclidated statement of income and the resulting carrying valuas of assets.

{c} Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

These financial assets are investments in unquoted equity where insufficient recent information is available 1o
measure fair value and management assessment is that cost represents the besl estimate of fair value.

{d) Assumptione for end of service benefits provision

The calculation of end of service benefits provision greatly depends on employees' estimated length of service and
iheir eslimated salary at end of service. Such estimates were based on the actuarial assumptions developed by
management. Those actuarial assumptions were based on the Group's historical data, recent trends, and
managament plans and forecasts with respact to salary leveals.

Life expectancy is not considered a principal actuarial assumption in measuring end of senvice benefits provision
ang therefore, possible changes in life expectancy are not expected to have a significant impact on the level of
obligation, especially since only a few employees are assumed to serve until the relirement age. Moreover, changes
in life expectancy will affect the estimates related to ihose employees only if life expectancy becomeas less than
retirement age and in such cases, the impact is not expected 1o be significant.

The discount rate was eslimated by reference to yiekis on the govermmental bonds, as management assessed that
there is no devp market in high quality corporate bonds. The Group used a single discount rate that approximates
the estimated timing and amount of benefit payments.

(@] Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
The impalrmeni proviston for Irade receivables is estimated based on assumptions about risk of default and
expecied loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making such assumptions and how changes in markst and

economic factors affect expected credit foss. The Group's judgement is based an the Group's past history, market
conditions and forward looking estimates at each reporting date.

1



JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidatad financial statements for the year anded Decomber 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

"

Provision for slow moving inventories

Pravision for slow moving inventaries is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potential loss on
inventory items. The level of allowance is determined and guided by the Group’s policy. An evaluation of
inventories, designed to identify potential charges to provision, is performed on a continueus basis throughout the
year. Managemenl uses judgment based on the best available facts and circumsiances, including but not limited
to evaluation of individual inventory items' future utilization. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any
period would therefore differ based on the judgments or estimates made. An incraase in provision for slow moving
inventories wauld increase the Group's recorded expenses and decrease current assets.

{iv) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

New standards adopted by the Group
The following standards effective as of January 1, 2018 have been adopted;

tFRS 15, '‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles
for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an enlity's contracts with customers. Revenua is
recognized when a customer obtains conlrol of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18 'Revenue’ and IAS 11
‘Construction contracts’ and relaled inlerpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2018.

As permitted by the transitionat provisions of IFRS 15, the Group elected to apply IFRS 15 retrospectively
only to the contracls that are not completed at January 1, 2018, with the cumulative effect of initially applying
the standard as an adjustment o the opening balance of retainad earnings al that date. However, in applying
IFRS 15, the Group concluded that there ware no adjustments need to be made given the immateriality of the
amounis of the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard. The new accounting policy on adoption of
IFRS 15 is presented in note 2.13.

The application of this standard did nat have an impact on the amounts presented in these consolidated
financial statements as compared to the previously applicable standards and related interpretations.

IFRIC 22, ‘Fareign currency transaclions and advance consideration’: IFRIC 22 addresses how to detarmine
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it} on the derecognition of a non-monetary assat or non-
menelary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency. IFRIC
22 is effective for annual reporting pariods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Adoption of IFRIC 22 does
nof have a malerial impact on the Group's consolidated financial staternenis.

Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle: This cycle includes the improvements on (i} IFRS 1 (deleted short-
term exemptions covering transition provisions of IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IFRS 10 which are no {onger relevant),
and (i) |AS 28 {clarifies that the election by venture capital erganizations, mutual funds, unil trusts and similar
entities io measure investments in associates or joint ventures at fair value through profit or lass should be
made separately for each associate or joint venture at initial recognition). These amendments to IFRS 1 and
IAS 28 are sffective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Adoption of these amendments
do not have an impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments 1o IAS 40: The amendments clarify that transfers to, or from, invastment property can only be
made if there has been a change in use that is supported by evidence, These amendmenis are effective from
annual periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2018. Adoption of these amendments do not have any
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial slatements.

The Group has already early adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments' in its annual consglidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

New standards or amendments not yet effective, not early adopted by the Group and expected to have
a significant impact on the Group's financial statements

IFRS 16, 'Leases”: The [ASB issuad IFRS 16 - In January 2016. This standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019, and permits early adoption far entities that also apply IFRS 15. The
Group will adopl the standard effective January 1, 2019.

The objective of IFRS 16 is ta ensure that lessees and lessors provide refevant information in a manner that
faithfully represents those transactions to enable users of financial siatements to assess the effect that leases
have on the financial posilion, financial performance and cash flows of an enfity. IFRS 16 introduces
significant changes to lessee accounting as it removes the distinction between operating and finance leases
under JAS 17 and requires a lessee lo recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at lease
commencement for all [eases. A lessee may elect not to apply such requirements to short-larm leases and
teases of low value assets.

12



JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidated financial statemenids for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise staled)

The Group plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on January 1, 2019 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
January 1, 2019, with no restatement of comparative information, The Group plans to make use of practical
expedients that are available under IFRS 16.

On January 1, 2019, for leases in which ihe Group is a lessee, the Group will recognize:

a) lease liabilites for leases, which ware previously classified as an operating lease, measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's incremental borrawing rate
at Janvary 1, 2019.

b) right-of-use assels at amounts equal io the lease liabilities, adjusted by prepaid or accrued lease
payments. For cartain chosen leases the right of use assets are measured at carrying amounits as if the
slandard had been applied since the commencement dates of leases discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property will be presented within investment properties.

Subsequent to the initial application, the Group will recognize dapreciation of right of use assets and interest
on lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of income, and will no mare recognize rental expenses on a
straight line basis in the consolidated statement of income. Consolidated stalemeni of cash flows is expected
to show more cash generated from operating activities and more cash utilized in financing cash flows as
repaymenis of the principal porfion of the lease liabililies will be classified as cash utilized in financing
activities. Such change in the nature of expenses and cash flows related to leases is expected 1o be
significant.

Based on the information currently available, the Group's preliminary assessment indicales that it will
recognize right-of-use assels of approximately Saudh Riyals 715 million, additional lease liabilities of
approximately Sawdi Riyals 780 million, an adjustment fo the prepayments and accrued expenses of
approximately Saudi Riyals 35 milion and an adjustment to the retained eamings {reduction) of approximately
Saudi Riyals 70 million as at January 1, 2018. Such assessmeni of impacl is subject ta change uniil the Group
presents its first consolidated financial statements that include the date of inltial application of January 1,
2019.

No significant impact is expected for the lease cumrently classified as a finance lease.

Subleases that are expected to be rectassified as a finance lease are not expected to be malerial

2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are thosa entities which the Company controls. The Company controls an investee if, and only if, the
Company has:

Power over the investee (i.e., existing righis that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investea

The ability to use its power over the invesiee to affect its returns

The presumption is that a majorty of voting rights results in control, All relevant activities are directed by the
Company being the holder of all the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consdlidaled from the date that control ceases.

When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial stalements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
inte line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assels and liabilities, equity, income, expanses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consclidation

The acquisition method of accounting is used lo account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of subsidiary comprisas tha:

the fair value of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

equity interest issued by the Group

fair value of any assel or llability resuliing from a contingent consideration arrangement
tair value of any pre-existing equily interest in the subsidiary
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Identifiable assels acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis at the nan-controlling interesl’s
proportionale shara of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related cosis are expensed as incurred,

Mon-controlling interasis, if any, represent equily interests in subsigiaries owned by outside parties. Non-controlling
interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of income,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.

2.3 Foreign currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals, which is the Company's functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency. Each subsidiary in ihe Group determines its own functional currency, (which
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operales), and as a result, iterns included
in the financial statements of each subsidiary are measured using that functional currency

Foreign currency transaclions are translated into Saudi Riyals using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchangs gains and losses resulting from the setilement of such iransactions and from
the translation at the period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in ihe consolidated stalemeant of incoma.

The results and financial positioh of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinfiationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the Groug's presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

+  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

*  income and expenses for each statement of income and statemeant of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates {unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case incoms and expenses are lransiated al the dates of the
transaclions).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net invesiment in foreign entities, are
recognized in other compreheansive income. Whan a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale

Exchange differences on monetary items receivabla from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur and tharefore in substance forms a part of the Company’s net investment in that
foreign operation, are recognized in equity through other comprahensive income and reclassified to the profit or
loss on disposal of the net investment.

2.4 Financial Instruments
(a) Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments

The Group initially recognizes financial assets and financial liabililies when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Trade receivables thal do not have a significant inancing component, initial measurement is at their iransaction
price, which is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customar, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Excapt for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, initial measurement of the financial
instrument is at its fair velue plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability nol at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are direclly alinbutable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs of financial assets carriad at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of income.

{b) Financial assets - subsequent classification and measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or
fair value through profit or loss. There are twa criteria used 1o determine how financial assets should be classified
and measured:

(a) the Group's buginess model for managing the financial assels: and
{b) the contraciual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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Key management personnel have determined that the Group's financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in arder ta collect cash flows.

A financial asset is measured at amertized cost if the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inlarest on the principal amount oulstanding.
Otherwise, a financial asset is measured at fair vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Investments in equity instruments are measured al fair value, and the Group did not elect o present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such investment in an equity instrument. On
transition to IFRS, the available for sale investment was reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL.

For investments in unguated equity, if insufficienl more recant information is available to measure fair value, or if
there is a wide range of poassible fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimata of fair vafue within
that range, cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value.

Financial assets are only reclassified between measursment categories, when and only when, the Group's
business mogde! for managing them changes, which is axpacied to be uncommon.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the rights ta the cash flows from the financial asset have axpired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards associated with the financial asset and doas
not retain control of the financial asset.

{c} Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortized cost,

As required by IFRS 9, the Group applies the simplified approach for trade receivables. As permilied by IFRS 9,
the Group elected to apply the simplified approach for kease receivables, so the Group always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The Group uses a provision matrix in ihe
calculation of the expacted credit losses on trade receivables to estimate the lifetime expected credit losses
applying certain provision rates to respective aging buckels. Trade receivables are segmented into two segments:
(i) wholesate and (ii) corporate sales, as each has its own credit loss pattern and, accordingly, different aging
buckets and provision rates.

As permilted by IFRS 8, the Group did not resiate prior periods for impairment requirements, and has recognized
the difference between the previous carrying amount and the carrying amount at January 1, 2017 in the opening
refainad earnings as at that date.

Financial assets are written off only when:

(i) the debtis at least cne year past due,

(i) the Group have attempled to recover and engaged in all relevant legal enforcement activities,

(i) it is concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, and

{iv) the wrile-off is approved by the Board of Directors, or management to the extent delegated by the Beard of
Directors.

Recoveries made are recognized in the consolidaled stalerment of income,

(d) Financial liabilities - subseguent classification and meagurement

Financial liabilities are subsequenily measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The effective
interast rate is tha rate that discounts the estimated future cash paymenis through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liabilily) from its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged ar cancelled
Or expires.

{a) Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and on hand and short-term depaosits with a malurity of three

months or less thal are readily convertible ta known amounts of cash and which are subjact to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.
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() Offsetting of financial instrumants

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offest and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
infends to seftla them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are carned at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average
mathod. Net realizable value is the eslimated salfing price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs to sell,

2.8 Investment properties

Investment properties ara propearties hald to earn rentals andfor for capital appreciation, including property under
construction for such purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost less of accumulated depraciation andfor accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cast includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Land is not deprecialed. Capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate investment properlies category
upoh complation and deprecialad from the point al which it is ready for use. Depraciation of buildings is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of betwean 20-33 years. Significant parts of an item of
invastment properties are depreciated separately.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property
is parmanently withdrawn from use and no future economic banefil is expected from its disposal. If an investment
property becomes awner-occcupied, it is reclassified as properly and equipment,

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income in the peried of derecognition.

The Group discloses the fair values of investment properlies in the ncoles to the annual consolidated financial
stalaments.

2.7 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes expanditurs that is directly aftributable 1o the acquisition of the items.

Major ingpeclions are recognized in the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are salisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income as incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate property and equipment category
upon completion and depreciated from the point al which it is ready for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the eslimated useful lives of the assels as follows:

Buildings 20 - 33 years
Machinery and equipment 5-13.33 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computers 5 years
Leasghold improvements 3 years

Significant parts of an item of property and equipment are depreciated separately.

An itam of property and equipment i derecognized upon digposal aor whan no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognilion of the asset (calculated as the diffarance
batween 1he nat disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement
of income when the asset is derecognized, When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied 1o investment
praperty, the property is reclassified as investment property.

The residual values, useful lives and methads of depreciation of property and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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2.8 Ilmpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting pariod whether there is any indication that nen-financial asgels
may ba impaired.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill, if any, are tested for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be racoverable. Goodwill, if any, is tested for impairment annuaily, For
the purpose of measuring recoverable amounts, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
saparately identifiable cash flows (cash-gensrating units 'CGUs’). Recovarable amount is the higher of an assel's
tair value less costs of disposal and value in use (being the present value of the expected future cash flows of the
retevant asset or CGU, as determined by management}. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
ils recoverable amount, the asset is congidered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the period it has occurred.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
racognized in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill, if any, may no longer exist or may have decreased. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if ihere has besn a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. Such reversal is
recognized in ihe consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses on gaodwill, if any, are not reversible

2.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present abligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
avant, it is probable that an outflow of resaurces embadying ecanomic benefits will be requirad to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimale can be made of the amcunt of the obligation, Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where the Group expecls some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract
the reimbursement is racognized as a separate asset but only when ihe reimbursemant is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income net of any reimbursement.

2.10 Zakat and income taxes

The Company is subjact to zakat in accordance with the regulations of the Ganeral Authority of Zakat and Tax (tha
"GAZT"). Provision for zakat is computed in accordance with the regulations of GAZT, and is charged to the
consolidated stalemant of income. Differences rising from final assassments are accounted for in the reparting
period in which such assessments are finalized, with associated adjustments to zakat provision recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

The Company withholds laxes with nan-residents as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law.

Foreign subsidiaries are subject {o income taxes in their respective countries of domicile. Such income taxes are
charged to the consolidated statement of income.

2.11 Emptoyas banefits

{a) Provision for end-of-service benefit

The level of benefit provided is based on the length of service and earnings of the parson antitled, and computad
in accordance with the rules stated under the Saudi Arabian Labor and Workimen Law.

The liability for end of service benefits, being a defined benefit plan, i3 determined using the projacted unit credit
method with actuarial valuations baing conducted al end of annual reporting periods. The related liability recognized
in the consolidated statement of financial position is the present value of the and of service benefils obligation at
the end of the reporting period.

The discount rate applied in amriving at the present value of the end of service benefits obligation represents the
yield on government bands, by applying a single discount rate thal approximately reflects the estimated timing and
amount of benefit payments.

End of service benefits costs are categorized as follows:

() current service cost (increase in the prasent value of end of service benefits abligation resulting from
employee service in the current period)

(i) interest expense (calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the end of service
benefits liahility); and

(i) remeasurement.
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Current service cost and the interest expense arising on the end of service benefits liability are included in the
sama line items in the consolidaied statement of income as the related compensation cost.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is recognized in full in the period in which they occur, in
other comprehensive income without recycling to the profit or loss in subsequant pariods. Amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income are recognized immediaiely in retained earnings.

(b} Short-term employee benefits

Short-tarm employes banefits are employae benefits thal are axpected to be seltled wholly before twalve manths
after the end of the annual reparting penod in which the employees render tha related servica. Short-term employee
benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided,

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
cbligation can be estimated reliably.

{c) Employees’ incentive program

Tha Group adopts an employees’ incentive program (the Program) whereby the Group grants selected employees
the night ta receive incentive cash compensalion at the end of a vesting period if specified conditions are met The
amount of compensation is linked to the growth in net income as reported in the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Since the incentives are not expected to be seitled wholly within twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, the liability for the Program
is measured as the present value of the astimated future payments in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit methed. The estimated future paymenis are discounted
using the relevant yield on government bonds. Remaasuremeant is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income in the period in which thay arise. The liability for the Program is classified under curreni and non-current
liability based an the expected dale of settlement.

2.12 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Regulations far Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company is required to
transfer 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve until such reserve equals minimum of 30% of share capital.
Such transfer is made at the end of the fiscal yaar. This reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders
of the Company.

2.13 Sale revenue

Sales revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a coniract with a customer excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, if any, The Group generally recognizes revenue at a point in time, when it
transfers control over a product to a customer, which typically occurs when the product is dalivered to the customer,
Sales revenue exclude value added 1ax (VAT) collected. Sales are shown in the consolidated statement of income
net of returns and any discounts given.

The following is a description of principal activities, from which the Group generates ils revenue:

{i) Sales in retail outlets

The Group owns and operates a chain of retail outlets under the “Jarir bockstora™ brand, selling office suppfies,
school supplies, books, computers & peripherals, computer supplies, smartphones & accessories, electronics, arl
& craft supplies, video games and kids development producls.

Sales revenue is recognized when the customer takes possession of the product sold by a Group enlity. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer purchases the product.

The Group's return policy grants customers the right of relurn within three days wilh certain requirements and
certain exceptions.

(i}  Wholesales

The Group sells office supplies, school supplies, computer supplies and art & craft supplies to other resellars. Sales
are recognized whan conlrol of the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the ressller
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affact the reseller's acceptance of the products. This type of sales
involves credit terms of 30-90 days. Typically, wholesales are non-returnable, and goods might be returned only at
management's discretion.
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(i)  Sale to corporate customers

The Group sells office supplies, school supplies, computer supplies, and art & craft supplies to corporate customers
for their own use. Sales are recognized when the products are deliverad to the customer and the Group has
objectiva evidanca that all criteria for acceptance have been salisfied. Typlcally, this type of sales involves credit
terms of 30-90 days, and for cartain cusiomers, goods are returnable within 90 days provided goods are in their
original condition.

(v) Online sales

Retail sales are also conducted orline in the Kingdom through “Jarir.com” website and “Jarir Bookstore app”. Sales
are recognized when the products are delivered to the customers by the shipping agent. Payment of the transaction
price is narmally received upon or before placing online orders and recognized as a liability until the racognition of
sales.

For all types of sales, historical expenence suggests that the amouni of returns is totally immaterial, and
accordingly, na refund liability is recognized at the time of sale. The validity of this conclusion is assessed at each
reporting date. If the returns pattern changed, the Group would recognize a refund liability and corresponding asset
{right to the refurned goods) for products expected to be returned, with revenue and related cost of sales adjusted
accordingly.

In all the above types, the stated price is the transaciion price, and the Group does not have contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and payment by the cuslomer exceeds one
year, and as a result, the Group does not adjust fransaction prices for the time value of money.

The Group typically sells computers, peripherals smartphone and other electronic devices with standard warranties
that provide assurance to the consumer that the product will work as intended normally for 12 months to 24 months
from the date of sale. Provision is made for eslimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still
under warranty at the end of the reparting period. The provision is estimated based on historical warranty claim
information, suppliers' recommendation, and recant irends.

The Group typically sells its own gift vouchers to its customers. The amounts collected from such sales are
recognized as a liability being a performance obligation and recognized as revenue when the gift vouchers are
redeemed by the customers. As per the terms of the gift voucher, its validity is cne year.

2.14 Cost of gales and operating expenses

Cost of sales consists of the costs previously included in the measurement cf inventory that has been sold to
customers, warehouse costs, cost of distribution to outlets, and all the costs of refail oullets including salaries,
wages and benefits, operating expenses, depreciation and occupancy costs.

Other operating expenses are classified as either Gereral & administrative or Selling & markeling expenses.
2.15 Rental revenue

Rental revenue from operaling leases on investment properties as well as subleases within leased properties where
the Group is lessee is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and recognized in the consclidated
slatement of income. Rents received in advance represent rents collecled from 1enants and are unearned at the
reporting date and presented under current liability in ihe consolidated statement of financial posilion. Oparating
lease receivables represent the amount of rent receivables arising from operaling lease contracts. Rental revenue
from these properties is included under 'other income’ in the consolidated statement of income:.

216 Interest expense

Interest expense, if any, is recognized within “finance costs’ in the consolidated statement of income using the
effective interest rate method, except for borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets, if any, which are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

The effective interest method is & method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
the interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rale that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments throughout the expecied life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial liability.

2.17 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic, and diluted {if any), eamings per share {EPS) data for its commeon shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profil or loss attributable 1o commeon shareholders of ihe Company by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the periad, adjusted for own shares held (if any)}. Diluted
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EPS, if any, is determined by adjusting ihe profit or loss attribulable to common shareholders and the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the affecis of all difutive potential
common shares.

2.18 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expanses thal relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other componenis All aperating segments’ aperating resulis are reviewed regularly by the chief exacutiva officar
of the Group, being the chlef operating decision-maker, to make decisions about resources {0 be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrele financiat statements are avaitable.

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief executive
officer.

2.19 Leases where the Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor,
are classifiod as operating leases, Payments made under operating leases are charged to the consolidaied
statement of income on a straight-line basis over the nen-cancellable period of lease together with any further
terms for which the Group has the option fo continue the lease when at the incaption of the lease it is reasonably
certain that the Group will exercisa the option.

Leases of agsels where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are recognized at the lease’s commencemant at tha lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated betwean tha
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance kalance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current and non-current liabililies The
interest element of the financs cost is treated as finance costs and expensed over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic raie of interest an the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorler of the assel's useful life and the lease
term provided there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease ferm
and in such cases, the assets are depreciated over the assel's useful life

2.20 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be raceived lo sell an asset or paid 1o transfar a liability in an orderly transaclion
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumplion
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability 1akes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asselliability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing those assets, assuming thal market participants act in their economic best inlerest.

The Group uses valuation technigues thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets for which fair value is disclosed in the annual consolidated financial statements are categorized within
the falr value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest leval input that is significant to the Fair
value measuremant as a whole:

+ level 1 - Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniquas for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurament
is directly or indirectly observable

+  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement
is ungbservable,

To measure the fair value of properlies, the Group engages an independent valuer who holds a recognized and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the aseat baing valued.

Management reviews valuer's report and assesses appropriateness of assumptions and valuation techniques and
tha overall reasonableness of valuation. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined
classes of assets on the basis of ihe nature, characteristics and risks of the assat and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above. Management detemrmined that the investment properties cansist of two classes of
assets: (i) office, retail and residential properties in KSA and (ji) office and retail properties in Egypt.
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2.21 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assels and liabilities in the consclidated slatement of financial position based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expecled to be realizad or intended ta be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting pariod, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used {o settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when;

It is expected fo be settled in the normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liakility for at least iwelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash and cash saquivalents

2018 2017
Cash at bank 140,081 185,425
Cash in hand 5,464 4,906
145,545 200,331
Trade recelvahles
2018 2017
Trade receivables 198,518 163,702
Less: allowance for impairment of trade
receivables (18,036) (16,665)
180,482 147,037
Movement in allowance for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
2018 * 2017
January 1 16,665 11,838
Adjusiment upon early adoption of IFRS 3 (see note 2.1 (iv) (a}) - 3610
Balance at January 1 - IFRS 9 calculated 16,665 15,448
Additions 1,539 1,523
Wiite-offs (23) (181)
Reversals (145) (125)
Cecember 34 18,036 16,665

* See nole 32.1.

21



JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the ysar ended December 31, 2018

{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Inventories

Smart phones, electronics and accessories
Computers and related supplies and programs
Office supplies

Books

School supplies

Video games and smart TVs

Engineering and technical supplies

Goods in transit

Others

Less: provision for slow moving inventories

Movement in provision for slow moving inventories is as follows:

January 1
Additions
December 31

Propayments and other current assets

Advances to suppliers

Prepaid rentals

Employees receivable

Less: Provision for doubtful employee receivables

Other prepayments

Claims on vendors

Lease and other receivables

Less: Provision for doubtful - lease receivables
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2018 2017
390,084 387,781
363,190 269,188
141,698 132,887
123,378 96,226

88,815 80,450
59,698 60,217
38,301 40,543

1,781 4,045

11,754 12,244
1,208,717 1,083,579
(151,044) (135,634)
1,067,673 947,945

2018 2017

135,634 116,832

15,410 18,802

151,044 135,634
2018 2017
207,862 88,825
48,309 58,601
26,977 26,492
(2,043) {1.712)
23,934 24,780
10,533 11,122
53,273 a28

36,163 21,083 |

(5.862) _ (2.269)
30,301 18,814
374,212 202,970




JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consclidatad financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Invastment properties
Construction
and other work
2018 Land Buildings in progress Total
Cost
January 1, 2018 124,415 986,521 B4,938 3n5,874
Additions - 504 47,113 47,617
Transfers - B3, 717 (53,717) -
Transfers to property and equipment (3.204) {1.368) (657) {5,249)
Exchange difference - {163) {348) {511}
December 31, 2018 121.211 149,191 77,329 347,731
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
January 1, 2018 - {20,329) (10,337} {30,666)
Additions - (3,218) - (3,218)
Transfars from property and equipment - (229) - {229)
Exchange difference - 28 108 136
Deacember 31, 2018 - (23,748) (10,229) (33,977)
Nat book value 121,211 125,443 67,100 313,754
Construction
and other wark
Land Buildings in progress Total
2017
Cost
Januvary 1, 2017 124 415 111,832 43 346 279,591
Additions - 10 25,256 25,266
Transfers - (16,329) 16,329 -
Exchange difference - - 1,008 7 1,015
December 31, 2017 124,415 96,521 84,938 305,874
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
January 1, 2017 - {22,790} - {22,790)
Additions - {2.665) - {2,665)
Transfers - 5163 (5.163) -
impairment . - (5,063} {5,063)
Exchange difference - {37) {111} {148)
December 31, 2017 - (20,329) (10.337) (30,666)
Net book value 124,415 76,192 74,601 275,208

All investment properties are held for rental income and net for capital appreciation.

7.1 Fair value of investment property

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, management detarmined that 1he investment properties consist of two
classes of assets: {i) office, retail and residential properties in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and (ii) office
and retail properties in Egypt as follows:

(Saudi Riyals in millions)

December 31, 2018 Decomber 31, 2017
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Valus
Office, relail and residential properties in KSA 278.2 5784 238.8 529.1
Office and retail properties in Egypt 356 36.7 36.3 78.9
Total 313.8 665.1 275.2 608.0
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

The fair value of investment property presented in the above table is based on valuation by independent valuers
who hold recognized and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued.

{i) Invesiment properties in KSA

The fair value measurements of the office, retai! and residential properties in KSA as at the above dates ware all
performed by Barcode Company {Abdulkarim Mohammed Abanme and Moath Mohammed Abanme, both are
accredited valuers by the Saudi Authority for Accrediled Valuers (Tageem), holding membership number
1210000001 and 1210000730, respectively). Barcode Company is independent valuer not related to the Group
who holds recognized and relevant professional qualifications and has recent experience in the lecation and
category of the investment property being valued.

The tair value measuremant in its entirety is classified inlc levet 2 and 3 based on the valuation techniques used
in estimating the fair value and related inputs.

For completed properties, the fair value was delermined based on capitalization of net income mathod, where the
market rentals of the properiies are assessed in light of the rentals of similar properties in the market and operating
expenses are eslimated based on market averages and valuer's knowledge. The capitalizalion rate usad is adopted
by reference to the yield rates nommally used for similar properties and location and adjusted based on the valuer's
knowledge of the factors specific to ihe respeclive properties.

For under-construction properties, the fair value of land was determined based on the market comparable approach
that reflects prices for similar properlies, while the fair value on construction works was determined based on ihe
cost approach by reference to the actual cost provided by the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their cument use.
There has been no change to the valuaticn techniques as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
(i) Office and retail properties in Egypt

The fair value measurements of the office and retail properties in Egypt are parformed by the three valuers with
the average being used to determine the fair value,

The following valuers were involved in vajuation of the properties in Egypt.

Valuation dates December 37 2017 and 2018:

El Said Financial & Engineering Consultancy {Dr. Moheeh El-Said |brahim), accredited real estate vaiuer by the
Financial Regulatory Authority {in Egypt), Reg. number 130.

Zaktronix (Eng. Zakaria Ali Mohamed El Gohary), accredited real estate valuer by the Financial Regulalory
Authority (in Egypt), Rag. number 56.

Deyar El Safwa (Eng. Mchamed Abdulrahman Ahmed Youssef), accredited real estate valuer by the Financial
Regulatary Authonty {in Egypt]), Reg. number 83.

All the above valuers are independent valuers not related to the Group, hokd recognized and relevant professicnal
qualifications and have recent experiance in tha location and category of the investment property being valued.

For 2018 valuation, the fair value was determined based on the market comparable approach. For 2017 valuation,
the fair value was determined mostly based on the market comparable approach with less weight given to
capitalization of net income mathod and cosl methed. This change in valuation technigue did net result in a
significant change in the fair value measurement due o the significant weight given to the market comparable
approach in 2017. This ¢change is deamed to provide more appropriate considering the availability of market data
for comparable assels.

The fair value measurement in its entirety is classified into level 2. Adjustment to levet 2 inputs that are significant
to ihe antire measuremeni did not use significant unobsarvable inpuls.

As prasented in the table abave, in 2017, the total fair value of office and retal properties in Egypt is in excass of
their total carrying amounts, however, there is a property which had a fair value less than its net book value, and
ils estimated value in use did not exceed its fair value. The camying amount of this property has been reduced to
ils fair value amounting to Saudi Riyals 22.3 million as of December 31, 2017. The cost of disposal was estimated
to be negligible. An impaiment loss of Saudi Riyals 5.1 million is recognized in the statement of income for the
year ended December 31, 2017. There has been no impairment loss or related reversal recognized in the statement
of income for the year ended December 31, 2013,
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The statement of iIncome includes, among others, the following amounts related to investment properties:

2013 2017

Rental incoms 29,181 31,518

Maintanance and rapair expenses from property that generated rental income 1,402 1,283
Maintenance and repair expenses from properly that did not generate rental

income N7 293

The Group has no significant contractual ¢bligations for repairs or maintenance of its investmeni properties.

25



9z

"dnous) 8y} O} peus|SUE)) Uasq SBY AIUSISUMO [BIDY3UA] Y} PUB SIS0 pue $ased PEIEJSS JC SWRY By} Jepun
pesmsiBas ale youm (LOINW £ 4T SIBAY IPNES '£LOZ) Lo £ ¥ Sfefly 1pneg o) Bupunowe spue) epnjaui Auadoid jusunsesul pue Juswdinba pue Auadosd ‘g0z ‘1€ Joqusoaq 18 Sy

889'G/0'L S6£'0L LE6'LLL £52'8C £i2'EL ZIL'E 1955 19LL LiZ'PLE 590'ZES
(:¥#43) {597°¢) S (£99'92) {8£0'GE) (rLO'8L)  (200'¢8) {rec's) (£59'96) &
i) E e (3] [F4) (3] {alL) = £l -
¥ze'L . e - £86 €2 16k LLL S =
(82s'op) {8v3'1) e (296'L1) (06Z'%} (6E¥'L) {ozr'e) ($y2) (ozg't1) =
(£199'212) (219'1) e (zos'gs) BzL1e) (evg'ol) {120'¢s) (z02'8) (rre'vs) =
LIOBEE L 092°¢) L65'LEL 0Z9'g0L LLg'ey 8z1L'0Z GiG/EL 56011 826'0LY 590'CES
(CTY E (zv1) 13 t ¥ 3 e B E
- - (2sg'204) 6EL'8 2191 o vas's ZL 5Z1'68 C
(eBL'S) - (Z12'c) S (1£2'1) {ee2) (29v) {eL) e e
Per'LLL o FE6'06 6¢'8 $08'G 649 25401 802 8 -
25'08T") 098'cl 89Z'8¢€1 L6¢'8e L9'Ty sL2'61 L6¥'ELY g8z'01 szL'lee S00'ZEG
2626111 §29°6 651'€T) £5E°0¢ HEZH ¥85°Z 67565 #09°) zve'ze 182'205
{zrsyic) (GeT'y) E (Z96'86) {9¥S 65} (908'8L)  (0gv'Es) {680°0L) {r2¥CLL) -
r1) e - - e - = E 1) E
622 e e S e s = e 62% e
8z0°) . e 19 28¢ z9r o8 29 S C
{zor'cs) (0L e (051.'22) (cog'y) (ps2'1) (8056} (218) (Zeo'v1) =
{cec zze) (sop'e} S (298'9L) {8c0'sE) {FLo'sl)  (goo'ce) (¥eL's) {259'08) S
BCE86EYL 0oeg'el 65L€2) SLE'BZL DES'LS 0/E12 626 LGt £60°L) gIE'Eey 16205
{602] E {a12) e - e E - z E
6¥2°s - 259 = e - e - 8RE‘L ¥OZ'E
o o {sop'coL) zie gyl ars 6:0'6 zel 929'69 006
{18¢°8¢) c (De'v) (19) oz} (L9%) (1oLl (29} S (ZLe'ze)
SLE'SZL c Z0S'2LL ¥85'2 180'c £50°L 820's ges 2881 e
LLO'GBEL 098'cL 166'2LL 0Z9'501 LLg'8p 9z1'0g 516'I€1 &60'LL 826'0LF 590'ZES

=TT esedj eoueuy  ssasboud w1 suswescsdun simndwon ssMyea  sanpgy pue  Juawdinbe  sBuwping pue]

Japun JHom 13YJ0 pue  ployaseadn) J0J0l aJnjuIng pue
sBupping  uonangsuoy Aisuiyaeny

8[BA 3OOq JoN

2102 "1 £ J3qusosg
aouayp sbueysxg
sjesodsig

SUCRIPRY

2107 '| Aenuer
uojepasdap peeInunagy

Z10Z 'Lg Jequisasq
aouasayp aburyoxy
SJBJSUBL ]

sjesodsig

SURIPRY

210z 'L Aenuer
1509

anjen %ooq 18N

BL0Z "LE Jequads(

soualayIp abueyaxg
Ausdoxd

Juatlsaaul 0) su3ysues |

s|esodsiq

SuQIppY

g10z ‘1 Aenuep

uogeasdap paRUINIY

2102 ‘)€ J9quisaag

2ousuayp shiueyoxy
Ausdosd

WWSL)SSAUI WAl SSURE )

SRJSUE] )

siesodsig

SUOIpPY

#L0z ') Aenuep

1500

wawdinbs pue Auadoag

(po1ms asIMIEYI0 $59JUN SPLESNOY S|RAY IPNES W SJUNOWE ||y)
2107 ‘1€ Jequuese(] papua Jeak o) J0} SJUBUIEIE)S |RITUBUL PA)EPIJOSUOD 0} SNON

{Auedwoy yao1g Julor jpneg v}
ANVJNOD ONLEIMNYW MINYP



10.

1.

JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 34, 2018

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise staled)

Bank borrowings and term loans

Interast Outstanding Contractual maturity

3.68%-

December 31, 2018 rate
Short term Tawarrug facility 4.05%
Dacembar 31, 2017

Short term purchase orders financing Tawarrug
facility

balance ] ]
Various maturities, the
last of which is February
275,000 7,2019
105 days from drawdown
84,153 date

The purchase orders financing Tawarruq facility is governed by a three-party arrangement between the Company.,
@ local bank and a foreign vendor. The bank pays the foreign vendor the nel amount of purchase orders placed by
the Company fo that vendor and the Company repays the same to the bank in 105 days. This Tawarrug facility
involves zero profit (zero finance cost) as the vendor undertakes the financing cost in accordance with a separate
arrangement between the vendor and the bank. Bank facility is secured by a promissory note.

Given the nature of the purchase orders financing Tawarruq facility, the relaled impact on cash flows is mcluded in
the related line items within the operating activities caption in the statemnent of cash flows.

Changes in bank borrowings and term loans arose from cash flows.

9.1 Finance costs

Interest on overdraft facility ([slamic debit current account)
Interest on averdraft facility - conventional
Interest on Murabaha/Tawarruq term loans

Liabilities against finance leasas

2018 2017
527 120
94 23
3,256 758
3.977 901

Prasent valua of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

2018 2017 2018 2017

Not |ater than one year 948 930 665 633
Later than one year and not later than five

years 3,919 3844 2,939 2834

Latar than five years 7,365 8,857 6,621 7,882

Less: future finance charges {1,958) (2,.282) - -

Present value of minimum leasa payments 10,275 11,349 10,275 11,349

2018 2017

Current 665 633

Non-current 9610 10,716

10,275 11,349

Finance leases relates to a showroom with a non-cancellable lease term until June 22, 2031 and a cancellable
term from June 23, 2031 to June 22, 2043. The lease contract contains an escalation of lease payments at the rate
of 1.3% on an annual basis, with no option to buy the leased properties.

Accounts payable

Trade payables
Advances from customers
Employees

Other

27

2018 2017
827,485 717,082
45,452 37,715
6,742 5,991
25,069 44,748
904,748 805,536




JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stack Company)

Notes to consaolidated financial statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Note 2018 2017

Accrued bonus and commission 60,251 58,394
Warranty charges provision 121 20,837 52,539
Accrued salaries, wages and henefits 18,682 29,792
Othar 16,361 11,895
115,931 152,420

12.1 Warranty provision

A provision is recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold for which Group is liable to cover warranty.
Itis expecled all these costs will be incurred within two years after the reporting date.

Assumptions used lo calculate the provision for warranties are based on product sales, date of sale, warranty
pariod, astimalad lavel of repairs and warranty costs.

The astimate has been made based on historical warranty trend and recommendation of vendors has been
considered and may vary as a result of cost changes, manufacturing processes and change in products quality.

Movemaent in provision for warranty is as follows:

2018 2017
Januvary 1 52,539 30,135
Added during the year 18,158 40,276
Utilized during the year {19,951) (17,872)
Reversals {30,106) -
December 31 20,637 52,538

" Reversals are due to recent service arrangements with vendors which resufted in the shift of warranty liability
from the Group to the vendors.

Deferrad revenues

Note 2018 2017

Gain on sale and lease back 131 4,889 5,280
Rental income 13.2 14,167 15,652
19,056 20,932

Current maturity shown under current liabilities {14,558) {16,043)
4,498 4,889

43.1 Gain on sale and lease back

The gain oh sale and leaseback represenis the gain related to the finance lease portion of a sale-lease-back
transaction at the net book value of Saudi Riyals 7 million for a sale vatua of Saudi Riyals 14 million resulting in a
gain of Saudi Riyals 7 million. This gain is being amortized over the lease term.

13.2 Rental income

Rental income represents amounts received from rental activity but not eamed as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Such amounts will be recognized as revenue in the subsequent year.
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Zakat and income tax matters

Zakat is calculated at 2.5% on the higher of approximate zakal base or adjusted net income. Zakat is calculated
based on the consolidated financial statements of Jaric Marketing Company.

14.1 Component of zakat base
The significant compenents of the 2akal base of the Company under zakat regulations are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Compongnts of zakat base
Shareholders’ aquity at beginning of year 1,697,931 1,576,665
Provisions at beginning of yaar 332,089 239,457
Adjusted net income for the year 14.2 440,526 473,122
Additions to property and equipment and investment property 172,732 142,699
Dividends paid in excess of retained earnings at beginning of year 391,569 366,835
Property and equipment, as adjusied {1,115,287) {1,079,400)
Zakal provision 14,086 20,846
Liabililies outstanding for one year or more 32,708 11,348
Dividends announcad and paidf (889,500) (747.000)
Foreign currency translation raserve at beginning of year {7i,888) (72.973)
Financial assels {investments) {27,951) (27.951)
Investment properties {313,754) {275,208)
Approximate zakat base 663,230 528,441
14.2 Adjusted net income
20138 2017
Comprehensive income for the year 862,874 872,961
Adjusiments:
Provisions during the year 31,835 74,771
Zakat for the year 14,250 7,250
Dividends paid in excess of retained earnings at beginning of year (391,569) (366,835)
Additions to property and equipment and investment property 172,732) (t42,698)
Oilhers 4,133) 27,674
Adjusted net income for year 440,525 473,122
14.3 Provision for zakat
The movemnent in the zakal provision for the year was as follows:
2018 2017
January 1 28,325 29,825
Provisions 14,250 7,250
Payments {14,259} {8,750)
Decembear 31 28,316 28,325

14.4 Status of final assessments

The GAZT has finalized the assessments for the years till 2010, Zakai retumns for the years ended
Dacember 31,2011 to 2017 are siill under review by the GAZT.

14.5 Income tax

The amount of income tax recognized in the consolidated statemant of income of Saudi Riyals Mii (2017: Saudi
Riyals 228 thousand) pertains to the subsidiary in Qatar.



15.

JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notas to consalidated financial statemants for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise etatad)

End of service benefits

The Company's end of service benefits plan is an unfunded plan. Cash generated by operations are quite

sufficient to meet end of service benefit obligations as they become due.

15.1 Changes in the end of sarvice benefit liability

2018 2017
January 1 125,707 118,277
Interest cost 3,929 3716
Current service cost 13,234 12,584
End of service benefit expense recognized in profit or loss 17,163 16,300
Benefits paid {5,125) {4,653)
Actuarial changes arising from experience adjustments {4,633) (5,394)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic
assumptions 608 955
Acluarial changes ansing from changes in financial assumptions {108) 222
Amaunt of gain included in other comprehensive income 4,133) (4,217)
December 31 133,612 125,707

End of service benefit expenses are included in the same line items in the consolidated statement of income as

the refated compensation cost,

Experience adjustments are the effects of differences betwsen the previous actuarial assumptions and what has

aclually oceurred.

15.2 Assumptions used and risks
The principal assumptions used in determining and of service benefit liability are shown batow:

2018

Discount rate 3.50%
Weighted average of the annual increase in compensalion used

in the caleulation of end of service B.1%

Weighted average future number of years of service 4.8

2017
3.25%

B.4%
53

The end of service benefit typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as interest risk, longevity risk and

salary rigk as follows:

Interest risk. As explained in note 2.11, the discount rale used to caleulale the present value of the end of service
benefits obligation is estimated by reference lo yields on the governmental bonds. A dacrease in the bond interest

rate will increase the end of sarvica benefit liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of the end of service benefits obligation is calculated by reference ta the bast
estimate of the number cf years of emplayment. An increass in the number of remaining years of employment wil!

increase the end of service benefit liability.

Salary risk: The end of service benefils liabilily is calculated by reference to ihe best estimate of future salaries of

aemployesas. An increase in the salary of employees will increase the end of service benefit liability.

15.3 Assumptions used and risks

Aquantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption on the end of service benefit liability as at December 31,

2018 and 2017 is, as shown below:

{Saudi Rivals in millions}

2018
Discount rate:
0.5 % increase {2.9)
0.5% decrease 0

30

2017

(3.2)
33
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notas to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Decamber 31, 2018
(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

(Saudi Riyals in millians}

2018 M7
Weighted average of the annual increase in compensation used in
the calculation of end of service:
2% increase 12.3 134
2% decrease {10.8) (11.7)
Weighted average future number of years of service:
Increase by 1 year 51 5
Decrease by 1 year (4.6) (4.9)

The sensitivity analysas above have bean determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the end
of service benefit liability as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping ali other assumptions
constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actuai change in the end of service benefit liability
as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one anolher.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the definad benaefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit cradit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the end of service benefit liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position,

The methods and assumptions used in preparing the sansitivity analyses for the 2018 and 2017 presented above
are consistent.

Related party matters

16.1 Related parties transactions

Significant iransactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business included in the consolidated financial
slatements are summarized balow:

2018 2017

Board of directors Salaries, wages and benefits 32,866 32,008
Parties relaled to the Board of Construction and engineering services - cost 132,841 88,338
Directors Rent income 995 985
Rent expense 1,732 8,458

Consulting services - expense 12 59

There were no special terms and conditions with the related party as compared to un-related parties.

16.2 Related parties balance
Significant year-end balance arising from transactions with related parties are as follows:

2018 2017
{1) Payable to related parties
Parties related to the Board of Direclors 184 298
(i) Receivable from related parties
Parties related to the Board of Directors 225 69

16.3 Key management personnel

Key management personnel, including all members of the board of directors, compensation comprisaed the
following:

2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits 3,475 33,027
Pasi-smployment benefits (end of service benefits) 3,877 2,267
Other long-term bengfits (long-term incentive plan) 512 571

Shorl-term employee benefits of the Group's key management personnel includes salaries, allowances, cash and
non-cash bensfits, bonuses, and contributions to General Organization for Social Insurance,

The amount of end of service benefits of the Group’s key management personnel includes both the amounts
charged to the statement of income amounting to Saudi Riyals 2,151 thousand for tha year ended December 31,

3
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

2018 (2017. Saudi Riyals 2,041 thousand) and actuarial loss amounting to Saudi Riyals 1,726 thousand for the
year ended December 31, 2018 (2017; Loss of Saudi Riyals 226 thousand).

Share capital

The share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2018 camprises of 120 million shares (2017; 80 millon
shares) stated at Saudi Riyals 10 per share.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company is reguired to
transfer 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve untii such reserve equals 1o 30% of its share capital. In 2017,
no such transfer is made during the current year since the Company's general assembly dacided to stop further
transfers to statutory reserve, which had already met the minimum required reserve in the preceding year. However,
as explained in Nole 1, following to the capital increasa in 2018 by bonus share issue through the capitalization of
Saudi Riyals 296.5 million from the statutory reserve and Saudi Riyals 3.5 millian from the retained eamings, the
Company resumed tha transfer of 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve. The movement on the statutory
reserve is presented in the consolidated statement of changes in sharcholdars’ equily. This reserve is currently not
available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company.

Revenue

Set oui below is the disaggregalion of the Group's revenue

The following table sets out the Group's revenus disaggragated by products and services category by reportable
segment:

(Saudi Riyals in millions)
Alf othar

Retall outlets  Wholesale sagments Total
2018
Smartphonas, elactronics and accessories 3,543 - 159 3,702
Other IT and digital products and servicas 2,235 3 17 2,356
Books and office, school and arts supplies 845 369 o1 1,305
6,623 372 67 7,362
{Saudi Rivals in millions)
All other
Retail outlets ~ Wholesale segments Total
2017
Smartphones, electronics and accessories 3,321 - 97 3,418
Other IT and digital products and services 2,091 5 63 2,159
Books and office, school and arts supplies 833 446 86 1,365
6,245 451 246 6,942

The following table sals out the Group's revenue disaggregated by products and services category by geographical
market:

(Saudi Riyals in millions)

Other Gulf

Kingdoem of Countries and
201¢ Saudi Arabia Epypt Total
Smariphones, alecironics and accessories 3,51 131 3,702
Other IT and digitat products and services 2,188 167 2.355
Books and office, school and ans supplies 1,150 155 1,305
6,909 453 7,362
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JARIR MARKETING COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to consolidated financial statamants for the ysar ended December 31, 2013
(All ameunts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

{Saudi Riyals in millions)

20.

.

22,

23.

Other Guif
Kingdom of Countrigs and
2017 Saudi Arabia Egypt Total
Smartphones, electronics and accessorias 3277 141 3418
Other IT and digital producis and services 1,994 165 2,159
Books and office, school and arls supplies 1,213 152 1,365
6,484 438 6.942
All the above revenues are racagnized at a point in tme.
Cost of sales
2018 2017
Purchases of goods 5,846,492 5515,630
Salaries, wages and bansfits 262,991 228,988
Depreciation 49,520 42 605
Rental 98,218 83,314
Others 100,408 89,324
Changes in inventories (109,728) (65,147)
6,247,901 5,904,684
General and administrative expenses
20138 2017
Salaries, wages and benefils 81,233 73,257
Professional services 2,340 3,700
Depreciation 3,514 3.645
Utilities 2,147 2234
Maintenance 2,736 2,817
Rentals B78 658
Other 14,099 11.681
106,952 97,692
Selling and marketing expenses
2018 2017
Advertising 38,742 57,688
Salaries, wages and benefits 39,540 37,958
Daprecialion 348 257
Other 14,749 3.675
93,349 104,778

Other income, net

This mainy includes rental revenue from operating leases on investment properties as well as subleases within
leased properties where the Group is lessee netted-off with related expenses and olher expanses.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share has been calculaled by dividing net income for the periods ended Dacember 31, 2018 and
2017 by 120 millian shares.
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Dividends

Based on the pre-approval of the Genaral Assembly, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 22,
2018, May 7, 2018, August 7, 2018 and November 1, 2018 resolved to distribute interim cash dividends amounting
to Saudi Riyals 229.56 million Saudi Riyals 216 miliion, Saudi Riyals 162 million and Saudi Riyals 282 million
respectively, which were paid to the shareholders during the year ended December 31, 2018, (a total of Saudi
Riyals 7.41 per share).

Based on a pre-approval of the General Assembly, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 15,
2017, May 8, 2017, August §, 2017 and Novamber 5, 2017 resolved to distribute interim cash dividends amounting
to Saudi Riyals 193.5 million, Saudi Riyals 198 million, Saudi Riyals 130.5 million and Saudi Riyals 225 million,
respaciively, which were paid to the shareholders during the year ended December 31, 2017, (a total of Saudi
Riyals 6,23 per share),

Segment information

a) Operating sagments

The Group is organized into business units based on factors including distribution mathod, targeted customers,
products and geographic location

The Group has two major operating segments namely, retail oullets and wholesale. The Group's chief exacutive
officer reviews tha internal management reporis of each segment at least quarterly for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of performance.

Al other operating segments that are not reportable are combined under *All other segments”. The sources of
income of thoze segments include corporate sales, e-commerce and rentals
The fellowing summary describes the operations of each reportable segment,

Reportabls segment Oparation

Retail outlels Sale of cffice supplies, school supplies, books, eomputers & peripherals, computer
supplies, smariphones and accessories, electronics, arl & craft supplies, video games,
smart TV's, kids’ development products and provides after-sale services. All the retail
outlets operate under the " Jarir bookstore” brand.

Whaolesale Sale of office supplies, school supplies, computer supplies, and art & craft supplies to
other resellers.

The segmenial information for the year ended December 31, was as follows:
{Saudi Riyals in millions)

Retal! All othar
outlets Wholesale segmenis Consolidated

2018

Sales 6,623 372 367 7,362
Income befora zakat and income tax 840 61 73 974
Depreciation {52) {2) {3) (67)
Finance cosi (A.71) {0.27) - (3.98)
2017

Sales 6,245 451 246 6,942
Income before zakat and income tax 737 81 57 875
Depreciation (44) {(2) {3) (49)
Impairment loss on non-financial assels - - (5) (5)
Finance cost {0.88) (0.02) - (0.90)

Sales reported above are all generated from external customers and there were no inter-segment sales.

Management uses segment income before tax to measure performance being the most relevant in evaluating the
results of sagments,

The accounting poticies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 2.18 above.
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b) Geographical information

The Group operates in two geographical segments namsly, Saudi Arabia and othar Gulf countries and Egypt. The
Group sales to external customers and infermation about non-curment assets by location for the year ended and as
of December 31, are detailed below.

{Saudi Riyals in millions)
Kingdomof  Other Gulf
Saudi Countries
Arabia and Egypt Consolidated

2018

Sales to exiernat customers 6,909 453 7,362
Non-current assets 1,377 80 1,457
2017

Sales to extarnal customers 6484 458 6,942
Non-current assets 1,307 72 1,379

Geographic information on sales is based on the geographic location of the customers and the geographic
information on nen-current assefs is based on the peographic localion of those assets. The Group maintaing
separate accounts for each country

Refer Note 19 for an analysis of the Group's sales from its major products and services categories to axternal
customens.

Seasonality of operations

The Group’s sales are positively affected by the back to school seasons, particularly sales of school and office
supplies. Normaliy, the grand saason (back to school from year-end haliday) falls in the third quarter while the small
season (back o school from mid-year bregk) falls in the first quarier, but may partly fall in the fourth quarter (of the
praceding financial year) depending on the school calendar, The grand season usually has a greater impact than
the small season.

Commitments and contingencies

28.1 Contingencies

Cenfingencies are as follows: {Saudi Riyals in millions)
2018 207

Letters of credit 161.8 146.6

Letters of guarantee 1214 276

28.2 Capital commitments

At December 31, 2018, the Group had capital commitments of Saudi Riyals 151 millicn {Dacember 31, 2017: Saudi
Riyals 249 million). This balance includes capital commitment of Saudi Riyals 138 million with a party related to the
Board of Directors (December 31, 2017: Saudi Riyals 232 million). These commitments are principally relating o
the construction of the buildings and leasehold improvements which will comprise spaces for Group's own use
including its retail outlats, and spaces 1o earn rentals.

Operating leases

Future rental commitments at December 31, under these operating leases are as follows:

{i) Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lkease contracts where Groug is lessee:
___{Saudi Riyals in millions)

2018 2017
Nol later than 1 year 61.8 65.8
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 87.3 984
Later than & years 8.6 22
157.7 166.5

Operating leases mainly relate to showrooms, employee housing and storage spaces. Operating leases of leased
showrooms are with lease lerms between 5 and 25 years and typically include escalation clauses.

Total minimum lease payment recognized as an expense amount to Saudi Riyals 108 million (Saudi Riyals 104
million in 2017).
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(i)  Future minimum lease paymants under non-cancellable operaling lease contracts where Group is lessar;
(Saudi Riyals in millions)

2018 2017
Mot later than 1 year 387 28.2
Later than 1 year and nct later than 5 years 327 438
Later than 5 years - -
68.4 77

Operaling leases relate 1o the investment properly owned by the Group, as well as subleases within leased
properties where the Group is lessea, with lease ferms between 1 to 10 years. Dependent on the lease terms,
some lease coniracts confain escalation clauses. Lessees do not have options 1o buy the leased properties.

The total future sublease payments related to leased properties, where the Group is lessea under the head lease,
amounts to SAR 29.1 million refaied to non-cancellable subleases at the end of the reporting period (SAR 44 million
in 2017).

Financial instruments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent investments in unquoted equity securities where
insufficient recent information is available to measure fair value and managemem assessment is that cost
represents the best estimate of fair value. All other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are classified and
measured at amortized cost, and the carrying amounts of all such financial instrumenis are @ reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Categorles of financial instruments

Financial assels

Line item in the statement of December 31, December M,
{i) Amortized cost financial position 2018 017
Cash at banks and in hand Cash and cash equivalent 145,545 200,331
Trade receivables (net) Trade receivables 180,482 147,037
Employees receivables (net) Prepaymenis and olher assets 23,934 24,780
Lease receivables (net} Prepaymenis and olher assets 26,706 15,438
Other receivables (net) Prepayments and other assets 3,695 3,376
{li) Fair valus through profit or loss
Financial assels mandatorily measured

at fair value through profit or loss Financial assets at FYTPL 27,951 27,951

Financial liabilities

Line item in the statement of December 31, December 31,
(i) Amortized cost financial position 2018 2017
Trade payables Accounts payable 027,485 717 082
Other payables Accounts payable 25,069 44,748
Bank borrowings Bank borrowings and temm loans 275,000 84,153
Other accrued hiahilitiss Accrued expenses and othar 16,361 11,695

current liabilities
Financial instruments - risk management

The principal financial risks faced by the Group relate to credit risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.

The Group is exposed to risks thal arise from its use of financial instrumanis. This note describes the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methads used to measure them. Further
quantitative information in respect of these risks is presenied throughout thase financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the Group's exposure to financial instrument risks, its objectives, policies
and processes for managing those risks or the methods uged to measure them from previous periads.

The Board has overal! responsibility for setting the Group's risk management objectives and pelicies and the
Group's finance funclicn assist tha Board in discharging its responsibility by designing and operating processes
that ensure the effective implementalion of the objectives and palicies.

The overall ohjeclive of the Board is 1o set policies that seek to reduce risk to ihe minimum.
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32.1 Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss fo tha Group i a customer or counterparly to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk from trade and other receivables. and the Group's holdings of cash and
cash aquivalents.

The Group considers its maximum credit risk equivalent to the carrying amount of the Group's lotal financial assets.
Most of the Group's customers have baen transacting with the Group for long time and no or very small impairment
loss has been recognized against these customers,

It is Group policy fo assess the credit risk of new customers before entering contracts. Credit limits are astablished
for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the management.
Management delermines concentralions of credit risk through a monthly review of the trade receivables' ageing
analysis, and follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of unrelated customars and there are no significant concentrations of
credit risk through exposure to individual customers,

Credit terms typically range from 30-90 days for trade receivables, with a few exceptions.
Credit risk also arises from cash with banks. For banks, only those with sound credit ratings are accepted

The Group establishas an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of credit loss in respect of frade
and cther receivables.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group's provision matrix for each
segment; wholesale, corporate sales and lease receivables:

Trade receivables:

(i} Corporate sales trade receivables
Trade recaivables - age in days

Credit

Total <90 91-180 1B1-360 361-720 Ovwver720 impaired
As at December 31, 2018 86,216 59,472 10,923 9,532 735 729 3,833
Estimated credit foss rate 2% 5% 20% 40% 75% 100%
Estimated credit loss 8,306 1,189 546 1,905 293 540 3,833
As at December 31, 2017 64,316 50979 5802 2,118 9485 369 4,053
Estimated credit loss rate 2% 5% 20% 40% 75% 100%
Estimated credit loss B,461 1,018 290 424 398 277 4,053
Additional allowance 564
Total credit loss allowance 7.025
(i) Wholesale trade

receivables Trade receivables — age in days
Credit

Total <180 181-360 36%1-720 Over720 impaired
As al December 31, 2018 104,716 99,604 1,135 2,741 75 1,161
Estimated credit loss rate T% 15% 50% 75% 100%
Estimaled credit loss 8,730 6,972 170 1,371 56 1,161
As at December 31, 2017 91,302 B8, 173 1,543 381 s 1,169
Estimated credit loss rate 7% 15% 50% 75% 100%
Estimated credil loss 7,790 6,172 232 190 27 1,169
Additional allowance 1,850
Total credil loss allowanca 9,640
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{iil} Other trade receivables (Neither past due nor impaired)

As at December 31, 2018 8,586
As at December 31, 2017 8,084

Tetal trade receivales {(Groas)

As at December 31, 2018 158,518
As at Decamber 31, 2017 163,702

Lease receivablas - age in days

Lease receivables: Credit
Total <80 91180 181-360 361-720 Over720  impaired

As at December 31, 2018 32,568 6,092 8,525 8,206 7,302 997 446
Estimated credit loss rate 1% % 15% 40% 80% 100%
Estimated credit loss 5,862 61 256 1381 2921 797 448
Ag at Dacember 31, 2017 17,707 4,864 6,243 4,787 953 414 446
Estimated credit loss rate 1% 3% 15% 40% 80% 100%
Estimated cradit loss 2,113 49 187 718 381 332 448
Additional allowance 156

Total credit loss allowance 2,269

Life time expacted credit loss recognized

The following table shows the movement in lifetime expected credit loss that has been recognized for recaivables
in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9.

Trade Laase

recaivables  receivables

January 1, 2018 16,665 2,269
Amounts added 1,539 3,593
Receivables written off being uncollectible 23) .
Amounts revarsed (145) E
December 31, 2018 18,036 5,862
January 1, 2017 11,838 576
Adjustment upon early adoption of IFRS 9 {see note 2.1 (iv) (a)) 3.610 -
Balance at January % 2017 - IFRS 9 calculated 15,448 576
Amounts added 1,523 1,823
Receivables written off being uncollectible {181} (130)
Amounts reversed {125} -
December 31, 2017 16,665 2,269

While the credit impaired trade receivables silghily decreased and the credit impaired lease receivables ramained
constant as compared to the prior pericd, the increase in the gross carrying amounts of trade and lease receivables
contributed to the increase of the impairment loss allowance being directly linked to the gross carrying amounts of
raceivables, aging and provision matrix. Moreover, certain trade and 'ease receivables moved to next aging
brackets contributing to increased impairmment loss allowance.

Credit quality and exposure

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets and the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

Gross Net

Internal credit 12 manths or carrying Loss  carrying

December 31, 2018 rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
Trade receivables Provigion matrix Lifetime ECL 198,518 18,036 180,482
Employees raceivablas Mostly performing 12 months ECL 25,977 2,043 23,934
Lease receivables Provision matrix Lifetime ECL 32,568 5862 28,706
Other receivables Performing 12 months ECL 3,595 - 3,585
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Gross Net

Internal credit 12 months or carrying Loss  carrying

December 31, 2017 rating lifatima ECL amount allowance amount
Tratde receivables Provision matrix Lifetime ECL 163,702 16,665 147,037
Employees receivables Mostly performing 12 months ECL 26,492 1,712 24 780
Lease receivables Provision matrix Lifetime ECL 17,707 2,289 15,438
QOther receivables Performing 12 months ECL 3376 - 3,376

32.2 Foreign currency risk

Fareign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates,

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relales primarily te the Group's operating
activilies when (i) ravenue or expense is denominatad in a foreign currency, (ii) recognized assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies and (iii) the Group’s net invesiments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group exposure to foreign currency risk principally invalves the following currencies:

United State Dollars (USD), Qatari Riyal {QAR), Unitad Arab Emirates Dirham (AED), Kuwaiti Dinar (KWD),
Egyplian Pounds (EGF), Euro (EUR), Pound Sterling (GBP), and Japanese Yen (JPY). The USD represents the
major foreign currency and payments to most of foreign vendors are made in USD. Management believes that the
Group's major exposure to currency risk is alleviated by the fact that Saudi Riyal, the Company's functional currency
and tha Group'e prasentation currency, QAR and AED are all pegged 1o USD, which represent most of the currency
exposure.

Fluctuation in exchange rates of the other currenciss is closely monitored by management.

The exposure to the risk of changes in EGP mainly relates to Group’ subsidiary in Egypt. Depreciation of the EGP
and the resulting diminution of the net investment in Group' subsidiary in Egypt is mitigated by the appreciation of
real estate assets which represent the vast majority of the subsidiary’s net asset, Such appreciation is not
recognized in recognized in the financial statement due the adoplion of cost modal in accounting for investment
properties. Refer to Note 8,1.

The carrying ameunts of the Group's USD denominated monetary assels and monetary liabilities a1 the end of the
reporting period are summarized as fallows:

{Saudi Riyalg in millions)
December 31, Dacember 31,

2018 2017
Trade payables {197.2) {(383.6)
Banks borrowings - (84.2)
Cash at banks 0.1 5.8
Net posilion {1987.1) {(462)

Foreign currency sensitivity

While it unforeseeable that the USD exchangs rate will change against the Saudi Riyal, being pegged 1o the USD,
the following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to the change in USD exchanga rate, with all other vanables held
congtant. The impact on the Group's profit (before zakat and income tax) is due to changes in the value of monelary
assels and liabilites. Apart from the impact on the Group’s profit (before zakat and income tax), there will be no
impact on the Group's equity. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit,

{Saudi Riyals in millions)

Effect on profit hefore zakat and
income tax
2018 2017

Change in USD rate
5 % increase (9.9) (23.1)
5% decrease 9.8 231
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32.3 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk fram bank borrowings at variable rate. Where the Group wishes
to obtain loans, the Group usually uses shert-term Shariaa compliant loans that are repayable in less than a year.
The use of long term has been limited only to financing large capital expenditures, which has been infrequent
historically, The Group's bank loans typically bear variable interest at a spread above SIBOR.

Overdrafl is usually used for immediate and temporary cash needs, and it baars variabla interest at a spread above
SIBOR.

In the past few years, the Group has not begen exposed to significant interest rate risk due to tha low level of
borrowings. In managing its capital, the Group might increase its borrowing within the Group's limit of the ratio of
net debt to shareholders equity as explained in nate *r,

Where the Group plans to increase interest-bearing bank borrowings (other than those with short term contractual
maturities) above 15% of equity, il is the Group's policy to keep bomowings at fixed rates of interest betwaan 30%
and 50% of its total interest-bearing bank borrowings.

During 2018 and 2017, the Group's interesi-bearing bank borrowings al variable rate were denominated only in
Saudi Riyals.

For the outstanding banks borrowings the Group had at Dacember 31, see note 9.

The sensitivity analysis in the following table has been delermined based on the exposure to interest rate for the
interest-bearing bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared agsuming the amount
of the bank borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period was oulstanding for the whole year, and a 50
basis poinl increase or decrease in the inlerest rate is used ag a reasonably possible change in interest rates. With
all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before Zakat and income tax would be affected as follows:

{Saudi Riyals in millions)
Effact on profit before zakat and

income tax
2018 2017
Change in intereet rate
50 basis points increase {1.38) -
50 basis poinis decrease 1.38 -

32.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeling its financial obligalions as they fall due.
The Group's chjective is to maintain a balance between caontinuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdraft and bank loans to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its iiabilities when they
become due.

The operatianal cash flow of the Group is normally predictable. The Group maintains a short cash conversion cycle
reflecting the nature of the business, receivables management and the credit terms extended by the vendors. Cash
flow forecasts are regularly produced to assist management in identifying future liquidity requirements.

{iy Contraciual malurities of financial liabilities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments
{undiscounted cash flows):

Less than 612 More than Carrying

6months  months  1-5 years & year amount
Dacember 31, 2018
Trade payables 827,436 - - - 827,485
Cther payables 25,069 - - - 25,069
Accrued liabilities 16,361 - - - 16,361
Bank Borrowings 275,000 - - - 275,000
Finance lease liabilities 949 - 3918 7.365 12,233
Tolal 1,144,884 - 3,919 7,365 1,156,148
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Less than 8-12 More than Carrying

6 months months 1-5 years 6 year amount
Dacember 31, 2017
Trade payables 717,082 - - - 717,082
Qther payables 44748 - - - 44 748
Accrued liabilities 11,695 - - - 11,685
Bank Borrowings 84,153 - - - 84,153
Finance lease habilities 482 468 3,844 8.857 13,631
Total 858,140 468 3,844 8,857 871,309

(i) Financing arrangements
The Group had access to ihe following unuiilised funding facilities at the end of the reporting period:

(Saudi Riyals in millions}

2018 2017
Short and medium-term loans 150 325
Overdrafis 150 120
Total 300 445

Capital management

The primary objeclive of the Group's capilal management is to maximize the returns to the shareholders, It is the
Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investors and creditors and to sustain future
development of the business,

For tha purposs of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued and paid up capital and all other equity
reserves attributable to the shareholders of ihe Company.

Management monitors the return on capital and the level of dividends the shareholders and seeks 1o maintain a
balance between the higher retums {which could be enhanced by higher levels of berrowing) and the benefit and
security provided by a sound capital position.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condilions and its
financial needs. To mainiain or adjusi the capital structurs, the Group may issue new shares or adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, while maintaining dividend payout at no less than 80%

The Group monitors capital using a ralio of net debt fo shareholders equity. Net debt includes bank borrowings and
tarm loans less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's policy is to keep this ratio below 25%.
At year end the Group's net debt was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2018 M7
Total borrowings and term loans 275,000 84,153
Lass: cash and cash squivalenis {145,545) {200,331)
Nat dabi 129,455 (116,178)

Comparative figures

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2017 financial statements to conform with the cument year
presentation.
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